
 

 

PO Box 1689 

425 South Main Street 

Pendleton, OR  97801 
 

Phone (541) 276-6449 

 

 
Umatilla Special Library District Board 

 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Thursday, January 25, 2023, 5:30 pm 
 

425 South Main Street, Pendleton, OR  97801 and  

Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85296035266?pwd=ZXZLNG1HRXRiRUNtRmpRT2lIc1BRUT09  

      Meeting ID: 852 9603 526 

Passcode: 654951 
 

Audio Only: +1 971 247 1195 
 

Agenda 

Call to order-  

Regular Meeting  

President 

Call the Roll & Establish Quorum        Secretary to the Board 

Approval of the Agenda            President 

 

Topic Lead Purpose Outcome 

Public Comment – Limited to Two Minutes 
Per Person 

President  

Limited to 30 Minutes Total                                               Please sign up 

Anyone may come forward at this time.  Comment on any topic not on the Agenda.  Public comment 
will be invited on Agenda items at time of consideration.  Only those who sign up will be heard at that 
time.  Only Board directed general discussion permitted 

 

Minutes – 

Board Meeting – December 28, 2023 

President Approval 

Calendar Update Director  

Correspondence Director Share at the meeting 

Reports  Director  

• Financial Statements 

o Accountants’ Report –December 2023 

o Banks & Pool Balances    

Director Share the December Financials 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85296035266?pwd=ZXZLNG1HRXRiRUNtRmpRT2lIc1BRUT09


 

Topic Lead Purpose Outcome 

• Staff Monthly Reports Director Information 

Board Training   

• Discuss desired topics and Schedule Board 
Retreat – update plans 

Board March 2 

Old Business   

• Approve new Sick Leave Policy  Board  Decision 

• Approve Emergency Action Plan for District Board Decision 

New Business   

   

• Budget process: appoint Budget officer, 

approve timeline and Budget Committee 

Director Decision 

• Strategic Plan Review to prep for Board 

Retreat. 

President Information 

• Governing Documents and Policy Review – 

EDI & A and Updates  

o ALSP Priorities 

Board Review & Approval 

Each month a new set of governing 
documents and policies will be 
reviewed with an equity, diversity, 
inclusion, and anti-racism lens, as 
well as updating policies as needed.   

Good of the order    Everyone  

• Next District Board Meeting – February 22, 

2024 
 Information 

 

Adjourn President Motion 

 

Sign language interpretation will be provided for the public if requested 48 hours before the meeting; 

notice 72 hours before the meeting is preferred. Requests may be made to Heather Estrada at 541-276-

6449. 



 

 

PO Box 1689 

425 S Main Street 

Pendleton, OR  97801 

 

Phone (541) 276-6449 

 

 
 

Minutes 
Board of Directors Meeting 

December 28, 2023, at 5:30 pm 
District Office (425 S. Main St., Pendleton Oregon) & via Zoom 

 
ATTENDANCE BOARD  
Caty Clifton, President   Sharone McCann, Vice President 
Nick Nash   Kathy Thew 
John Thomas 
 

ATTENDANCE STAFF   
Heather Estrada, District Director 
Dea Nowell, Technical Services Manager (via Zoom)  
 

ATTENDANCE – VISITORS 
none   
 

CALL TO ORDER  
Board President Caty Clifton called the Board Meeting to order at 5:31 pm. 
 

CALL THE ROLL & ESTABLISH QUORUM 
Heather Estrada stated that all five (5) Board Members were present in the office – John Thomas, Caty Clifton, 
Sharone McCann, Nick Nash, and Kathy Thew – thus we have a quorum. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
There were no changes to the agenda.  John Thomas moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Kathy Thew 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 

MINUTES 
Board Meeting: November 16, 2023 – Kathy Thew moved to approve the November 16, 2023; minutes as 
presented.  Nick Nash seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

CALENDAR UPDATE 
Heather Estrada stated there was nothing new on the calendar.  She did note the upcoming Meeting of the 
Directors on January 10th, and verified with Nick Nash that he was still planning to be there.  She also noted that 
on tonight’s agenda we will be looking at dates for the Board Retreat/Workshop. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE  
Heather Estrada stated we received a nice note of thanks from Kathleen Schmidtgall for her gift.  Additionally, 
Heather stated we received a Pendleton Development Commission meeting notice; and a notice that our 
unemployment insurance is going up a bit – this notice which will be going to Dickey & Tremper since they do 
our payroll. 



 

p. 2 of 4 

 
REPORTS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – October 2023 & November 2023 
Caty Clifton commented about the balance in October’s statement being the lowest and up in November with 
the tax receipts.  Kathy Thew made a motion to approve both financial statements [October 2023 and 
November 2023], subject to audit.  Nick Nash seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
STAFF MONTHLY REPORTS 
Heather Estrada highlighted she had met with Claudia from CAPECO and Claudia will be presenting at the next 
Meeting of the Directors.  She is interested in the libraries helping with the Point-In-Time count on January 25th, 
as she believes the County’s count is down from what it should be.  Heather also met with Sage DeLong, 
Umatilla County Emergency Management Coordinator, to connect with him as a point of contact.  He has only 
been there about six (6) months.  Heather is looking to have him present at the next in-service regarding 
emergency action plans.  Heather sent him our draft emergency action plan; however she has not yet heard 
anything back from him regarding it. 
 
Heather commented that Monica Hoffman will be working remotely for about half of January.  Heather also 
commented that Dea Nowell was out a lot of last week due to illness. 
 
Caty Clifton shared her gratitude for staff members putting their reports together, as she knows it is a lot of 
work.  She also thanked Dea for her website work and getting all the reports, etc., posted. 
 
BOARD TRAINING – SDAO TRAINING ON LEAVE… 
Heather Estrada commented that she was thinking of sharing a video tonight, though she didn’t get it queued up 
due to courier taking most of her day, which she didn’t anticipate.  And the video was very long.  Thus, the Board 
moved directly into the sick leave policy discussion. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
SICK LEAVE POLICY DISCUSSION 
Heather Estrada noted that there isn’t much regarding sick leave in the law.  She did look at some other agency’s 
policies.  She put the items the Board had discussed at the last meeting into the draft update in red text and put 
for consideration some of the language from Baker County Library District’s policy in blue text.   
 
The Board Members commented that they liked the statement in blue text, however felt we needed to clarify a 
timeframe for this.  It was noted that no staff members are currently at the 90-calendar day limit of sick leave 
accrual.  It was suggested that we could prime the “leave pool” with 40 hours, as none of the staff began this 
proposed 40 hour paid sick leave at date of hire.  There was additional discussion and clarifications, such as 
drawing from the leave pool before any voluntary donations; what timeframe seemed appropriate for donating 
– deciding on yearly, based on calendar year.  The Board settled on changing the final section in red to read: 
“Special considerations for granting additional paid sick leave may be made by the Board under certain 
circumstances, after flexing working schedules and all available paid leave.” 
 
Heather will type up the policy changes into the final format before the Board votes on this in January. 
 
EMERGENCY PLAN UPDATE 
Heather Estrada again noted that she had spoken with Sage DeLong at Umatilla County and had sent our EAP to 
him, though hadn’t heard anything back on it yet.  The plan will be reviewed/updated annually.  It was 
suggested that we assist the libraries with creating their own emergency action plans.  That is something that 



 

p. 3 of 4 

Heather is already working on with Sage DeLong presenting at the spring in-service and then in May working on 
at the Meeting of the Directors, like we did with the collection development policies, for which there was good 
response to.  The Board is waiting for any feedback before finalizing. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
BOARD WORKSHOP DATES AND TOPICS 
The Board discussed possible dates and settled on Saturday March 2, 2024, 9am-noon.  Location possibilities 
were discussed and will be determined based on availability, etc.  Topics will include salary step schedule and 
strategic plan review, of which Nick Nash will take the lead on. 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF FY2022-23 AUDIT 
Heather Estrada stated that the draft copy is on the Board’s SharePoint site, though she has not yet received the 
hard copy.  She will be picking it up tomorrow while out on courier detail.  The last page has a paragraph that 
reads: “In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the District was 
not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the 
provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-
320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.”  Heather noted that the audit has 
been filed with the State.  John Thomas moved to accept the audit as presented.  Kathy Thew seconded the 
motion.   The motion passed unanimously. 
 
MAGAZINE COSTS ADDED TO LIB2GO 
Heather Estrada shared that LEO (Libraries of Eastern Oregon) has been polling libraries regarding adding 
magazines to Library2Go, which looks like it is moving that way.  Heather is proposing that the District pick up 
the additional cost, about $7,000 additionally, for our libraries, as we can more easily absorb it than some of our 
libraries can.  We have money in contingency we could draw on.  The additional magazine cost for the 
Library2Go accounts would be in the same manner as we currently do with the regular Library2Go subscriptions.  
John Thomas moved that the District pick up the added magazine cost for the LEO Library2Go subscriptions for 
our libraries.  Sharone McCann seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
BUDGET CALENDAR 
Heather Estrada presented the draft Budget Calendar for FY2024-25.  After a bit of discussion regarding dates of 
meetings, Nick Nash moved to approve the Budget Calendar as presented.  Kathy Thew seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
NEW COUNTY SIP AGREEMENT 
Heather Estrada shared that we received two (2) new SIP agreements from the County for a new wind project 
coming in – Nolan Hills Wind.  There is a wind and solar component, as well as a battery component, which 
comprise the two (2) different SIP agreements.  After a bit of discussion, Nick Nash moved to sign the two (2) 
County SIP agreements.  Sharone McCann seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER  
[Sharone McCann left the meeting.] 
 
Caty Clifton stated that Heather Culley had been hired as the new Weston PL director.  She noted that this 
would have an impact on Dea Nowell’s workload, since that leaves no cataloger at Pendleton PL.  Heather 
Estrada and Dea noted that there has been discussion with Jennifer Costley, Pendleton PL director.  She is 
currently adding some of their items to the catalog and Dea will help with some, as Jennifer would like to utilize 
this area of service as much as the other libraries do. 



 

p. 4 of 4 

 
NEXT DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
The next Board Meeting will be on January 25, 2024, at 5:30 pm.   
 
ADJOURN 
Kathy Thew moved to adjourn the meeting.  Nick Nash seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously 
with the four (4) Board Members present.  The meeting was adjourned at 7:17 pm by Board President Caty 
Clifton.   
 
Respectfully submitted by Dea Nowell 



 

 

17 SW Frazer Ave – Suite 360 

PO Box 1689 

Pendleton, OR  97801 

 

Phone (541) 276-6449 

 

 

1/19/24 Monthly District Director Report 
 

Date: January 25, 2023 Board Meeting 

Staff Name: Heather Estrada 

Time Period Report Covers: December 25, 2023 – January 19, 2024 

 
1. Position Purpose Statement 

 
The mission of this position is to manage the operations of the UCSLD and support and 
strengthen the development of excellent library services in Umatilla County by working in 
partnership with the independent libraries.  
 

2. Meetings and Site Visits 

Date Meeting/ Site Visits/ 

Activity 

Method What happened 

12/25-26/23 Christmas Holiday Vacation Off 

12/27/2024 GO! Article turned in  On-line Monthly marketing article in newspaper 

 

 12/27-29/23 
IMESD Courier In-Person 

Did courier routes all three days and 

visited with Library staff and Directors 

12/27/2023 
Weekly Check-in Meeting with 

Dea 
Teams 

Check in on what’s happening and 

what’s coming up 

12/27/2023 Grand Jury  In-Person Grand Jury Duty in Pendleton 

12/28/2023 Monthly Board meeting In-person Regular monthly board meeting,  

12/29/2023 Complete PERS reporting On-line Monthly reporting  

1/1/2024 New Year’s Holiday Vacation Off  

1/3/2024 
Weekly Check-in Meeting with 

Dea 
Teams 

Check in on what’s happening and 

what’s coming up 

1/7/2024 
Black History in Oregon 

webinar 
Zoom Continuing education   

1/8/2024 
Weekly Check-in Meeting with 

Dea 
Teams 

Check in on what’s happening and 

what’s coming up 

1/8/2024 
New Director meeting in 

Weston  
In-person 

Meet with Kathleen and Heather to 

welcome and train new Director 

1/10/2024 Bi-Monthly Director’s Meeting 
In-Person 

and On-line 

Grant training (Nick) and CAPCO 

director information 

1/11/2024 Ryan Dowd training  On-line Continuing Education 



 

1/12/2024 SAIF insurance meeting In-Person 
Meet with Michael Corey regarding 

new year insurance policy  

1/12/2024 Interviewed Heather Culley Phone Interviewed for next GO! Article. 

1/12/2024 
Pendleton Public Library Open 

House 
In-Person 

Attended Pendleton’s open house 

event. 

1/15/2024 MLK Holiday Vacation  Off  

1/16/2024 
Weekly Check-in Meeting with 

Dea 
Teams 

Check in on what’s happening and 

what’s coming up 

1/17/2024 County Commissiors Meeting In-Person Staying up to date on County business 

1/17/2024 Staff and Safety Meeting Teams  
Monthly safety meeting and check in 

with staff 

1/19/2024 Race in America webinar Teams CE time 

    

    

 
 
 
 
 
3.  Projects and Progress 

Project Status % Complete 

In-Service Training Fall In-Service complete, all posted and 
documented  

100% 

Audit Audit finished and filed with State.  Just 
needs Board acceptance   

100% 

Agreements for Library 
Services 

All 12 libraries complete 
 

100% 

Public Records 
Management 

The records are about 75% complete – 
procedures are being written and the 
outline of the filing structure will be 
available for staff 

75% 

Performance Appraisals All staff are in and completed.  Quarterly 
check-ins set up.   

50% 

Community Needs 
Assessment 

Feedback received.  Board to discuss 
what’s next. 

80% 

Succession Planning Policy and plan to be written   5% 

Disaster Planning More research done on background. 
Working on final document. Board to 
accept 

95% 

Marketing Plan Ongoing EO column, plan will be part of 
strategic planning process 

70% 

Office 365 A portion of the UCSLD checks is on bill 
pay 

Ongoing 



 

Best Practices for SDAO Heather submitted document 100% 

Safety & Staff Meetings January: City Driving (Transportation) 
February: Cybersecurity: Security 
Awareness Essentials 

ongoing 

ALSP Coming in Call for 23-24 ALSPs out.  All in 100% 

Budget Process New FY process starting.  Budget 
committee to be approved.  

10% 

 
4.  Feedback & Accomplishments 

• Had a great Director’s meeting in Echo.  Dave was so pleased to have us and very 
complementary to District. 

• Budget process underway.  Committee to be approved.  

• Had a chance for 1-on-1 talks with many of the Directors in their spaces during 
Courier run. 

 
5.  Upcoming Events – Activities 

• January 15th – MLK Holiday 

• January 25th – January Board Meeting 

• January 30-Feb. 1st – Medical leave 

• February 8-11th – SDAO annual conference (Heather, Nick, Sharone) 

• February 15-16 – Heather and Monica on college tours with HS students 

• February 19th – President’s Day Holiday 

• February 22nd – February Board Meeting 

•  

 



 

 

PO Box 1689 

425 S Main Street 

Pendleton, OR  97801 
 

Phone (541) 276-6449 

 

 

 

Date: January 25, 2024 

Staff Name: Dea Nowell 

Time Period Report Covers: December 2023 
 

1. Position Purpose Statement 
 

The purpose of this position is to support the UCSLD member libraries’ abilities to 
provide services and participate in consortia activities through cataloging (maintaining 
the integrity of the bibliographic database and authority control) and technical support.  
Additionally, this position also administratively & technologically supports the UCSLD 
Board of Directors and staff. 
 

2. Statistics 
 

cataloging statistics: 

 

* Item 
additions 
to Sage 

* Item 
deletions 

from Sage 

* Item 
corrections 

in Sage 

Temporary 
bibs 

upgraded 

*** Sage 
bib     

fixes 

*** Sage 
bib 

merges 

*** Sage 
bib 

deletes 

*** Sage 
bib 

overlays 

Dec. 2023 288 250 578 0 58 5 0 2 
           

  
  

* for the most part all libraries in District: except Hermiston, Milton-Freewater, Pendleton,   
  & Umatilla [though I do add a few bibs to Sage for Umatilla, counted in here, but not items]   

   

  *** looking strictly at bibliographic records, not necessarily all are related to District libraries' holdings 
 

reports run: 
regular monthly: item stats: all 

12 pub. lib. 

 
temp bibs 
missed put 
into bucket 

OCLC 
CatExpress stats 
(added & 
deleted) 

circulation related:  
Adams PL – 3 
Pilot Rock PL - 1  
Stanfield PL – 3 
Milton-Freewater – 3 
Weston - 1 

pre-cataloged items: 
Milton-Freewater PL-1 
Ukiah P/SL - 1 

 

in process items: 
Milton-Freewater PL-1 

          Ukiah P/SL – inventory of Audiobooks and inventory of Music CDs (to delete) 

 Athena PL – weeding reports, no circulation in 5 years for Adult Non-Fiction, 
Juvenile Non-Fiction, & YA Non-Fiction 

 

3. Meetings and Site Visits       
 

▪ Sage Cataloging Committee meeting:  1  (12/5)  
▪ Sage Circulation Committee meeting:  1  (12/12)  
▪ Staff/Safety meetings [via MS Teams]:  1  (12/20)  
▪ UCSLD Board meeting [via Zoom]:  1  (12/28)  
▪ Sage Cataloging Mentor meetings [via GoToMeeting]: 1  (12/27)  
▪ webinars/trainings attended [virtual]:  

o Bibliographic Standards Committee of the ACRL Rare Books & Manuscripts Section – Cool Things We 
Cataloged 2023 webinar (12/4) 

o Infopeople – Graphic Novels and Manga for Teens and Tweens (12/5) 
o PLA – Super Searchers for Library Workers (12/12) 
o SafePersonnel – Fake News: How to Plan for, Combat it  (12/14) 

▪ meet weekly, typically Monday am, with Heather [via MS Teams]: 4 (12/4, 12/11, 12/18, 12/27)  
 

visits to/with District Libraries: 

• all libraries - 2  [email]   
 emailed updated City Library Hours spreadsheet 
 email of upcoming time out of office 



 

 p. 2 of 3 [1/12/24] 

• Adams PL - 1  [phone]   
 called re. email about Board Book section & Playaway products questions; also spoke 

about several other things (summer reading program, teen advisory group, etc.) 

• Athena PL - 5  [phone, email]   
 call – couple of ?s re. Playaways, Wonderbooks, & Launchpads 
 call (left a message) re. statistical categories for classics in batch of missing in catalog 

scans 
 email reply about not needing to scan back cover for Wonderbooks 
 emailed Young Adult, Juvenile, & Adult non-fiction weeding reports (2) 

• Helix PL - 2  [phone]   
 called re. email 
 called – left a message re. email listed for City Library Hours spreadsheet (which one?) 

• Hermiston PL - 1  [email]   
 email reply to Heidi re. change of hours 

• Pendleton PL - 3  [email]   
 emailed cataloger an apology about subdivision “video games” as I had spoken 

incorrectly about it not being valid & just discovered by looking deeply into the 
subject authority file that it is indeed valid (2) 

 emailed cataloger a bib to review (online resource) rather than a print book bib (found 
in new bibs review) 

 email reply to director re. what information I need from items to look for and add a bib 
to the catalog 

• Stanfield PL - 4  [phone]   
 call to check on a barcode for an item (was missing a digit) 
 call – need barcodes for 2 titles 
 call to check on pagination for an item (left message & called again later) (2) 

• Ukiah Lib. - 6  [phone, email]   
 called (left a message) re. email “weeding audio cat.” – rec’d call back to clarify ? (2) 
 emailed inventory of audiobooks 
 emailed report of items with status = discard/weed 
 emailed thanks for sharing new email address – have updated my contacts & on 

District website, asked if wanted me to update City Library Hours and send out again  
 call (left a message) re. a scan with no call number or physical description 

• Umatilla PL - 1  [email]   
 fwd. to director an email from Libs-Or list re. an upcoming, pre-paid by SLO, 

cataloging webinar/training opportunity 

• Weston PL - 2  [phone]   
 called to check in on Kathleen and the transition process there 
 rec’d call with update on transition process, dates, etc., & spoke about cataloging, etc. 

• Beth Ross [Sage Library System - Systems Administrator] - 1  [phone] 
 called with information/update re. [director/]cataloger at Pendleton PL 

 

4. Projects and Progress  
 

• [nothing new, just trying to stay on top of (keep & catch up on) things…] 
 

5. Accomplishments  
 

• website work: 
 Board agenda, packet, & minutes posted 
 in-service evaluations posted 
 corrected year-end report teaser to direct to most current year-end report 
 added a teaser for public records to front page with all information & forms 
 updated closed dates/holidays for upcoming year on Google Business Profile & 

was finally able to get the update to the description to better describe us to 
take – Erin & I worked on the wording about a year and half prior, but it stated it 
was awaiting review.  Description now reads “Umatilla County Special Library 



 

 p. 3 of 3 [1/12/24] 

District (UCSLD) is a county-wide, tax-supported public library district.  We 
partner with 12 public libraries in Umatilla County to provide library services.  
This office is the administrative headquarters for the District and the 
headquarters of TakeOff!, an early childhood literacy outreach program.  UCSLD 
was created by a vote of the Umatilla County voters in November 1986.” 

 contacted Streamline (website platform vendor) to add a missing iframe title on 
the map on our Contact Us page (accessibility error) - [they added it]  

 updated “About Us” statement on website to match statement on Google 
Business Profile 

 posted Dec. library happenings video 

• Sage Cataloging Mentor: 
 replied to an email question by a cataloging mentor to the mentor group 
 called Kristin Williams (BMCC) following up on email ? re. paperback ed. (they have) & a 

hardcover ed. In Sage – I mentioned the Matching Standards doc. & briefly described… 
 emailed some duplicate bibs to another mentor to review & thanked her for her recent 

shared work on Playaways, as it has been helpful to me… (2) 
 emailed one of the mentors regarding some suggested additions/changes to the series 

guidelines document being updated 
 called Heather Spry (cataloging mentor from Baker Co. Lib. Dist) re. email – Heather 

volunteered to take over mentoring the cataloger at Enterprise PL for me, as I just don’t 
seem to find the time necessary to connect with the new person…, so I reviewed with 
her the details (of contact & training) to date; Heather also had a question for me re. 
cataloging 

 new bibs reviewed (Nov. 2023 – total: 138)  
 

Feedback received: 
• 12/5/23 – email response from Susie Sotelo (Umatilla PL director) after I fwd. an email from 

Libs-Or list re. an upcoming, pre-paid by SLO, cataloging webinar/training opportunity:  
“Thank you so much Dea, I just applied. :) 

• 12/6/23 – email response from Lisa Hauner (fellow mentor) after I sent her some duplicates 
to review:  “…You are awesome Dea. I appreciate my humanity reminders, especially when 
they come from the people who know ‘who’ they are talking to ;)” 

• 12/19/23 – email response from Heather Spry (fellow mentor) after I sent her some suggested 
additions/changes to the series guidelines document update: “Awesome, thanks Dea! After I 
sent it out yesterday I thought about the revision date too, so I had added that to mine 
yesterday but I definitely didn’t catch the other things, those are fixed/added.” 

 

6. Upcoming Events - Activities    
 

• Sage Circulation Committee meeting – Jan. 9 

• webinar – Jan. 11 

• Sage User Council meeting – Jan. 16 

• Staff/Safety meeting – Jan. 17 

• Library of Things discussion – Jan. 17 

• UCSLD Board meeting – Jan. 25 

• Sage Cataloging Mentor meeting – Jan. 31 

• Holidays: New Year’s Day & Martin Luther King Jr. Day – Jan. 1 & Jan. 15 

• vacation – Jan. 2 



 

 

425 S. Main Street 

PO Box 1689 

Pendleton, OR  97801 
takeoff@ucsld.org 

Phone (541) 612-2052 

 

 
Date: January 18, 2024 

Staff Name: Monica Hoffman 

Time Period Report Covers: December 2023 

 
Position Purpose Statement: 
The Program Manager creates and implements outreach services to childcare, 
preschool, and public library sites throughout the county, fostering a love of 
reading and promoting kindergarten readiness through the development of early 
literacy skills targeting children ages birth to six. 
 
Statistics: 
Attendances at Library Storytime’s are kept separately as Take Off! 
Childcare/preschool Storytimes so the libraries can count those attendees for their 
statistical reports. 

Book Box Statistics Boxes/kits Books 

To Sites with Storytime 38 760 

To Sites without Storytime 8 158 

Total 46 918 

Storytime Statistics Library Storytimes Childcare Storytimes 

Storytimes Provided 4 20 

Adults in Attendance 17 55 

Children in Attendance 27 193 

Total Attendance 44 248 

 
Meetings and Site Visits:  
Friday, December 1, 2023: Weston 

• Weston Public Library Storytime with Kathleen. 
 

Tuesday, December 5, 2023: Athena 

• Athena Public Library Storytime with Stephanie 
 

Wednesday, December 6, 2023: Umatilla and McNary 

• Umatilla Head Start Enhanced Class Storytime and materials exchange with 
Janie. 

• Umatilla Early Head Start Storytime and materials exchange with Favi. 

• McNary Heights IMESD early intervention/special education morning class 
Storytime and materials exchange with Katy. 

• Umatilla Head Start afternoon class Storytime and materials exchange with 
Crystal. 

• McNary Heights IMESD early intervention/special education class Storytime 
and materials exchange with Katy. 
 

Thursday, December 7, 2023: Hermiston 

• Victory Square Head Start Storytime and materials exchange with Nikki 

• Victory Square Head Start Storytime and materials exchange with Andrea. 



 

• Oregon Child Development Coalition Storytime with Jaime materials 
exchange with Kimberly 
 

Monday, December 11, 2023: Hermiston 

• Cathy Wamsley Early Learning Center Head Start Storytime and materials 
exchange with Yesenia. 

• Hermiston Child Development Center Early Head Start Combo 
Monday/Tuesday class Storytime and materials exchange with Claire.  

• Hermiston Child Development Center Early Head Start Storytime and 
materials exchange with Johanna. 

• Hermiston Child Development Center Early Head Start Storytime and 
materials exchange with Kristin. 

Afternoon off: Travel to Portland: Family Medical 
 

Tuesday, December 12, 2023, Out of Town: Family Medical 
 
Wednesday, December 13, 2023 

• Childrens Service Division of Oregon Library Association Mock Geisel Virtual 
 

Thursday, December 14, 2023: Hermiston 

• Hermiston Child Development Center Early Head Start Combo 
Wednesday/Thursday class Storytime with Claire.  

• Cathy Wamsley Early Learning Center Early Head Start Storytime and 
materials exchange with Rhonda.  

• Good Shepherd Children's Center Pre-K storytime and materials exchange 
with Tigers and Otters 

• Good Shepherd Children's Center infant-toddler storytime and materials  
exchange with Monkeys, Giraffes, and Penguins 

• Bethlehem Lutheran Preschool materials exchange 

• Misty's In-home Childcare materials exchange 
 

Friday, December 15, 2023: Virtual Meetings  

• Childrens Service Division of Oregon Library Association Board Meeting 

• Oregon Library Association Board Meeting  
 

Monday, December 18, 2023, Out of Town: Family Medical 
 
Tuesday, December 19, 2023: Stanfield 

• Stanfield Elementary School morning preschool classes Storytime and 
materials exchange with Debbie and Stacey 

• Stanfield Public Library Storytime with Cecili 

• Stanfield Elementary School afternoon preschool classes Storytime with 
Debbie and Stacey 
 

Wednesday, December 20, 2023: Pendleton 

• Staff and Safety Meeting 

• Elsie's In-home Childcare Storytime and materials exchange  

• Jen's In-home Childcare Storytime and materials exchange 



 

• Mindy's In-home Childcare 
materials exchange 
 
Friday, December 22, 2023: 
Adams 

• Adams Public Library 
Storytime with Amanda 
 
Monday, December 25, 2023- 
Tuesday, December 26, 2023, 
UCSLD Holiday 
 
Wednesday, December 27, 
2023- Friday, December 29, 
2023, In-Office, and Courier  

 
 Projects and Progress:  

• Oregon Ready to Read 
2023 Grant. 100% 
complete 

• 2023 Ready to Read 
Grant Report submitted. 

• Collection 
development/box 
revisions- ongoing  

• Event marketing 
slideshows and window 
display- ongoing 
 

Upcoming Events – Activities: 

• January 8, 2024, Patriot 
Heights Family Literacy 
Night Stanfield  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





























UMATILLA COUNTY SPECIAL LIBRARY DISTRICT 
P.O. Box 1689 

Pendleton, Oregon   97801 
(541) 276-6449 

 
 
 

 2024-2025 Budget Calendar 
 
 

 
2024 
 
2/16  Notify Library Directors of projected tax income and distribution estimates 
 
3/1  Send notice of Budget Committee Meeting to East Oregonian (EO) 
 
3/5  1st notice of Budget Committee Meeting published in EO & on UCSLD web site  
 
3/12  2nd notice of Budget Committee Meeting published in EO & on UCSLD web site 
 
3/21  Budget Committee meets and approves proposed budget 
 
4/1  Send Notice of Budget Hearing to East Oregonian  
 
4/9  Notice of Budget Hearing published in EO & on UCSLD web site  
 
4/18  Budget Hearing, adopt budget, make appropriations and declare tax levy 
 
July 15  Deadline to submit levy, appropriation resolution and budget to County Assessor & Clerk 



 
 

2024-2025 Budget Committee Members 
 

 

 
 
 

          Umatilla County Special Library District 
  P.O. Box 1689 

Pendleton, OR  97801 
541-276-6449 

director@ucsld.org 
 

 
 

 
 

  
First Last Address City Zip Telephone Email Term Ends 

2 Cade  Burnette 610 Mamie St Stanfield 97875 541-620-1092 Burnette.cade@yahoo.com  6/30/2025 

1 Mary Finney P.O. Box 454 Pendleton 97801 541-379- 1410 happycanyonpyro4@gmail.com  6/30/2025 

5         

4 Kathleen Schmidtgall 78696 3rd St.  Athena 97813 541-969-2847 library.girl@live.com  6/30/2026 

3 Darcy  Sexson 77714 S. Edwards 
Road 

Stanfield 97875 503-793-7856 darcy.sexson@northwestfcs.com  

 
6/30/2024 

mailto:director@ucsld.org
mailto:Burnette.cade@yahoo.com
mailto:happycanyonpyro4@gmail.com
mailto:library.girl@live.com
mailto:darcy.sexson@northwestfcs.com


 

1 
 

 

Strategic Plan – 2022-2025 
 
 

 
UCSLD Mission: 
 
The Umatilla County Special Library District works in partnership with our libraries 
to advance and make available excellent library services, programs and continuing 
education opportunities for all. 
 
 
 
UCSLD Vision for the Future: 
 

The Umatilla County Special Library District (UCSLD) works collaboratively with 

our public libraries to ensure that high quality library services are available to all. 

 

Public libraries are places of welcome for everyone, and UCSLD strengthens and 

unites our communities. 

 

Library staff are valued and recognized for providing exceptional service to their 

communities. UCSLD invests in Library Staff development, and offers opportunities 

for interaction, skill-building and cross-training. 

 

To advance the vision, UCSLD partners with groups and organizations to increase 

the reach of literacy and access to information, building on the foundations of a 

democratic society. 
 
 
 
UCSLD Values: 
 

Integrity 
Accountability 
Transparency 
 
Community 
Inclusion 
Fairness 
 
Resourcefulness 
Resilience 
Creativity 

 



 

2 
 

Plan 
 
 
1. Strategic Direction: 
 

Residents have access to information about community programs, experts, 
services and activities. 

 
Leveraging our county-wide view, provide awareness of community needs,  
resources and experts, as well as provide needed resources directly to 
member libraries. 

 
Needs addressing: 
 

• Community members desire to know about local area events, activities, 
programs, etc. 

• Community members have knowledge needs with which an expert can 
assist. 

• Community members and library staff members don’t have a surplus of  
time. 

• Many libraries do not have marketing budgets or a marketing specialist 

on staff.  

• Need for consistent, clear advocacy for library services in Umatilla 

County. 

• Need for responsiveness to evolving community opportunities and 

challenges. 
 

 
A. Goal: 

 
Residents have access to where and how to find information about a wide 
variety of resources, programs, services, experts, and activities. 
 
Tasks: 

o By June 30, 2023, conversations are held between information 
agencies in Umatilla County to research the possibility of a central 
source for information access. 

o Annually, the UCSLD collaboratively compiles lists of emergency 
numbers, referral agencies, etc. for each community within Umatilla 
County and shares it with the libraries.  

o By June 30, 2023, the District Director will research new methods 
for marketing and advocacy efforts. 

 
B. Goal: 

 
The UCSLD continues community needs assessment efforts to better 
know and understand our community residents. 
 
Tasks: 

o Ongoing – The UCSLD continues community needs assessment 



 

3 
 

efforts to share with libraries and other county agencies and 
organizations. 

o By March 31 of each year, the UCSLD compiles demographic, 
anecdotal and survey data to share with the libraries.  

o Annually, the UCSLD creates a report of the District’s fiscal year 
with information showing growth and development. 

 
C. Goal: 

 
The UCSLD seeks dynamic partnerships and builds collaborative efforts to 
enhance library services to residents of the District.   
 
Tasks: 
o Ongoing – continue to build collective, cost-effective, district-wide 

programs and services with library director consensus 
o Ongoing – seek out partners to extend the UCSLD mission 
o Ongoing – investigate ways to work with the Libraries of Eastern 

Oregon and Sage Library System consortia for building efficiency and 
reducing duplicative efforts and expenditures 

 
 
2. Strategic Direction:  
 

Residents have access to a variety of information resources through library 
services, programs and continuing education opportunities. 
 

Working with our library members and partners, ensure that residents have 
access to the information resources they need.    

 
     Needs addressing:  
 

• Community members have a variety of life-long learning desires. 

• Community members and library staff members need access to 
adequate and effective technology. 

• Libraries have limited training budgets. 

• The need for service to vulnerable, underserved, and homebound 
people. 

• The need for service to children and families who can’t easily access a 
library. 

 
 
A. Goal: 

 
The UCSLD ensures access to professional development to build the 
capacity of UCSLD staff and staff members of public libraries, the UCSLD 
Board of Directors and individual Library Boards. 
 
Tasks: 

o November and April each year:  All-staff in-services are provided 
during the fiscal year on library services best practices and the 
effective use of a variety of library resources. 



 

4 
 

▪ The Continuing Education sub-committee will inform the 
training and theme 

▪ Investigate various options to provide in-service trainings 
o Ongoing – UCSLD staff participate in continuing education to build 

the capacity to support library services in the District, for example: 
▪ Leadership, management and evolving library services 
▪ Continuing RDA-related and other cataloging training  
▪ Emergent literacy development 

o Ongoing – Vendors and other experts on library service resources 
will be shared during the Meetings of the Directors 

o Ongoing – the UCSLD Board of Directors will take part in monthly 
training, as well as periodic work sessions  

o Ongoing – Utilization of technology and other means to continue 
growing communication, shared information and proliferation of 
ideas and learning among UCSLD library members and partner 

o Develop and promote training to support effective and quality use 

of online and digital resources – work with the SLO, libraries and 

schools. 
 
 

B. Goal: 
 

The UCSLD supports member library outreach efforts, helping to provide 
accessible services to populations where they are.  
 
Tasks: 

o Ongoing – UCSLD staff support member libraries’ outreach efforts 

o Ongoing – The Take Off! Program partners with Libraries to support 

and/or provide programs. 

o Ongoing – The Take Off! Program partners with Libraries to provide 

Storytime Kits for library staff members to use including books, 

manipulatives and story time extenders  

o Ongoing – Continue working with county partners who serve 

populations that do not have access to libraries. 
 
 

C. Goal: 
 

The UCSLD directly provides early childhood literacy outreach to children 
in Umatilla County. 
 
Tasks: 

o Ongoing – Partner with Umatilla County Early Childhood Educators so 

young children develop early literacy skills by the time they start 

kindergarten.  

o Ongoing – Facilitate opportunities to encourage adults to enjoy 

reading, talking, writing, and playing with their young children 

regularly in ways to develop early literacy skills.  

o Ongoing – Provide quality early literacy materials to the children the 

Take Off! Program serves in a fiscally responsible manner. 



 

5 
 

o Ongoing – as theme boxes are updated, they are added to the 

inventory 

o Ongoing – Work with the United Way of the Blue Mountains to 

continue growing the Dolly Parton Imagination Library program. 

 
 

3. Strategic Direction:  
 

The UCSLD leverages tax dollars to ensure the continuation of excellent, 
growing library services within the District. 

 

The UCSLD was created by a vote of the people to provide library service 
to the residents of the District, and the Board of Directors continues to be 
accountable to the taxpayers.  

 

Needs addressing: 
 

▪ Fiscal responsibility and accountability 
▪ Budgets and services impacted by unexpected events 
▪ Increased costs  
▪ Rapid technological changes 

 

 
A. Goal: 
 

The UCSLD operates efficiently, effectively and within the laws of the 
State of Oregon and the approved policies of the UCSLD Board of 
Directors. 
 
Tasks: 

o Ongoing - The public and libraries’ staff members have access to 
early documents of the UCSLD through digitization efforts. 

o Ongoing – The policies of the UCSLD Board of Directors are 
reviewed and updated on a schedule set by the Board in July of 
each year 

o Ongoing – UCSLD records are organized, retained and destroyed 
according to the State of Oregon law. 

o Ongoing – Develop new and more efficient processes using 
technology tools  

o By June 30, 2024, the new UCSLD strategic plan will have sub-plans 
added to include:  

▪ Succession planning 
▪ Disaster planning 
▪ Marketing planning 
▪ Technology planning 

 
 
 
 
 
Approved by the UCSLD Board of Directors at their April 28, 2022 Meeting. 



 

 

PO Box 1689 

425 South Main Street  

Pendleton, OR  97801 

 

Phone (541) 276-6449 

 

 
 

Annual Library Service Plans 
FY2022 - 2023 

Process & Template 
 
Date:  March 25, 2022 

 

To:  Library Directors 

 

From:  District Director – Erin McCusker 

 

 

As we embark on this coming fiscal year’s budgets and plans, I wanted to send out some guidelines for 

creating your ALSP.  The ALSP is due to the UCSLD on May 1, 2022.  

 

Planning is critical to guide how we spend our time and budgets.  And it is important that residents of 

our District know how their tax dollars are being used to provide library services.  These ALSPs and the 

reviews we do in the Fall are critical to how the Board illustrates to the tax payers what is happening 

with the funds that go to your library.  And, planning is just a good thing to do.  It helps us keep moving 

in the direction of our vision and mission.   

 

All good plans are based in the community’s needs. The UCSLD is in the middle of a community needs 

assessment.  I will be sending out the results of our community needs assessment to you to help with 

this in mid-April.   

 

For your planning, you can use any plan format that works for you.  The attached template is one 

option.  If you have a strategic plan, that is another option.  Regardless of format, please state your 

library’s vision, highlight your goals, the community needs that are inspiring the goals, and list the 

activities you will be focusing on for this coming year.  If you want to use the priority areas to focus on, 

indicate the priority driving your goal.   

 

The priority areas, chosen by the directors of the libraries many years ago and updated per your input 

are below:   

 

1. Early Childhood Programs: Focused on early childhood literacy that gets children ready to learn. 

 

2. K-12 Youth Programs: Focused on establishing/maintaining a lifelong relationship between the 

youth and the public library. 



 

 

3. Adult Programs: Focused on continuing education programs, enhancement of economic viability, 

and lifelong learning. Includes outreach to seniors and the homebound. 

 

4. Professional Development: Focused on identifying and providing specific training needed by staff, 

board and volunteers that will strengthen skills, services, and programs. 

 

5. Technology: Focused on significantly increasing web presence and technology resources to 

provide rural community access to the Internet, jobs, and skill learning. 

 

6. Welcoming/User Friendly Atmosphere: Focused on developing a library that is a friendly, active 

and welcoming center of rural community life. 

 

7. Effective Library Board: Focused on committed and effective Board, actively engaged in the 

governance and planning of the library. 

 

8. Friends/Volunteers: Focused on utilizing Friends and Volunteers as active and effective resources 

to assist with access, services, program delivery, fundraising efforts, publicity and community 

relations. 

 

9. Community Relations & Marketing: Focused on establishing the library as a vital presence in the 

community. 

 

Let me know if you have questions.  Looking forward to seeing what you have in mind for the next 

year!   

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 


